
   
0                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
   

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, MARCH 1, 2021 
 

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 RESIDENTS ARE ENCOURAGED 

TO ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM. 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

Topic: March 1, 2021 Council Meeting. Time: 7:00 PM Central Time 

Meeting ID: 208 907 3779 Internet Link: https://zoom.us/j/2089073779 One tap mobile: 

+13126266799,,2089073779# US (Chicago) Dial-in:1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING DBARTLEY@PERU.IL.US (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 
ROLL CALL     7:00 P.M.     
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
  
INTRODUCTION OF ILLINOIS VALLEY PISTOL SHRIMP  
 
 
MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 15, 2021 
 
CITY CLERKS REPORT OF CASH RECEIVED FOR JANUARY 2021 
 
GENERAL & MISCELLANEOUS FUNDS REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
UTILITY FUND REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/2089073779


COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN 
 
1. FINANCE AND SAFETY SERVICES   Chairman Radtke, Sapienza,  

       Payton, Buffo & Mayor Harl 
  
 DISBURSEMENTS for March 3, 2021 
 

Motion to engage  Foster & Foster Annual Actuarial Reports for $9,850 
• Police Pension GASB 67 & 68 Footnotes ($3,350) 
• Firefighter Pension GASB 67 & 68 Footnotes ($3,350) 
• Other Post-Employment Benefits GASB 75 (OPEB) ($3,150) 

 
 

 
2. PUBLIC SERVICES     Chairman Waldorf, Ferrari,  

       Lukosus, Ballard & Mayor Harl 
  
   

Motion to approve an Engineering Service Agreement with Chamlin & Associates for the 
EWWTP sludge tank geotechnical & foundation design. 
 
Motion to approve a quote from Anixter for fiber materials in the amount of $42,694.00. 
 
Motion to authorize the Director of Engineering & Zoning to seek bids for the 2021 Street 
Maintenance Program. 
 
Motion to authorize the Director of Engineering & Zoning to seek bids for the Area 5 Phase 1 
Sewer Separation project. 
 
 

 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION OF DOUGLAS AND JENNIFER CASS CONCERNING 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 930 34TH STREET, PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIANCES AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF DOUGLAS AND JENNIFER 
CASS CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 930 34TH STREET IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION OF GC HOUSING DEVELOPMENT LLC AND CRANE 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LLC CONCERNING THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1810 4TH STREET AND 
710 PEORIA STREET IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SIX-MONTH EXTENSION FOR SUBMISSION OF FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF GC HOUSING DEVELOPMENT LLC AND CRANE 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LLC 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN EXPRESSION OF INTEREST LETTER WITH 
SURF BROADBAND SOLUTIONS 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A PROPERTY USE AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PERU AND PISTOL SHRIMP BASEBALL CLUB LLC, d/b/a ILLINOIS VALLEY 



PISTOL SHRIMP FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY AND FACILITIES AT VETERAN’S PARK IN PERU, 
ILLINOIS. 
 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
FAIR HOUSING MONTH-APRIL 2021 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Motion to approve the hiring of two selected candidates to fill the Public Works laborer positions. 
 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
ITEM NO. 1 Communication from George Steinbach of The Right Spice Supper Club requesting 

permission to re-establish outdoor dining on Pike Street beginning on or after April 
15th; use of city barricades for summer months. 

 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 15, 2021 
   

 1 

A regular meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Scott J. Harl in the Peru City 
Council Chambers on Monday, February 15, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll 
with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo present; Mayor 
Harl present.  

All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.  

PUBLIC COMMENT  

PRESENTATION 

MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS  

Mayor Harl presented the minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 1, 2021; Special Meeting Minutes 
of February 11, 2021; Treasurer’s Report for January 2021; Sales, Home Rule, Use and 
Telecommunication Tax Receipts for November 2020; Building Permit Reports-4th Quarter 2020; 
Building Permits Annual Report 2020; Peru Police Department Report for January 2021; Peru Volunteer 
Ambulance Service Inc. Activity Summary for December 2020 and the Peru Volunteer Ambulance 
Service Inc. Activity Summary for Year 2020.  Alderman Waldorf made a motion that the minutes and 
reports be received and placed on file. Alderman Radtke seconded the motion; motion carried. 

FINANCE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE  

Alderman Buffo presented the following disbursements for payment on February 17, 2021:  

FUND NAME      TOTAL EXPENSES 

General Fund                  $449,944.70 

Insurance Fund                           18,771.74 

Garbage Fund              68,274.18 

Utility Fund                  1,818,859.14 

Airport Fund                              4,990.21  

Total          $2,361,344.47 

Alderman Buffo made a motion that the report be received, placed on file and the bills be paid in the 
usual manner. Alderman Payton seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with 
Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion 
carried.  

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE  

Alderman Lukosus made a motion to approve revised quote for the 251/I-80 cabinet replacement from 
Sonoma-Underground in the amount of $26,675.00 (Original approval granted on 11/23/20). Alderman 
Waldorf seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

Alderman Waldorf made a motion to approve CAT generator maintenance from Altorfer in the amount of 
$68,531.96 (7 generators). Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion. PSM Jeff King reported we had four 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 15, 2021 
   

 2 

generators today per IMEA. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

Alderman Ballard made a motion to approve government bid from Bob Ridings Fleet Sales for Ford F350 
pickup truck for the Electric Department in the amount of $41,873.00. Alderman Waldorf seconded the 
motion. PSM Jeff King reported the old truck will go to the airport. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the 
roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; 
motion carried. 

REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  

Corporate Counsel presented a proposed resolution entitled: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-04 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN ILLINOIS CASH FARM LEASE 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PERU AND JOHN LAMPS (HALM FARM-70.6 ACRES) 

Alderman Payton made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Radtke 
seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, 
Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

City Clerk Dave Bartley presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 

ORDINANCE NO. 6536 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CEDING OF 2021 PRIVATE ACTIVITY BONDING 
AUTHORITY 

Alderman Radtke made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Sapienza 
seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, 
Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of Planning/Zoning hearing held on February 
3, 2021 concerning the petition of Robert Angelini regarding property located at 2601 2nd Street, Peru, IL. 
Planning/Zoning Commission recommended to deny the petition.  Alderman Radtke made a motion the 
minutes be received, placed on file and concur with the recommendation. Alderman Payton seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, 
Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

City Clerk Dave Bartley presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 

ORDINANCE NO. 6537 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING WAGES FOR FULL-TIME SWORN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS, THAT ARE NOT PART OF A 
COLLECTIVE BARGANING AGREMENT COMMENCING MAY 1, 2021 AND ENDING 
APRIL 30, 2024 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 15, 2021 
   

 3 

Alderman Radtke made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Sapienza 
seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, 
Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

PROCLAMATIONS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

PSM Jeff King reported on the plan to remove snow from Rt. 6 and other problem areas.  

Clerk Bartley noted the YouTube and Facebook live portals show the agenda and voting but not Zoom. 
Clerk Bartley apologized to the Zoom participants. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Alderman Waldorf made a motion to authorize license/lease negotiations between the City of Peru and 
the Pistol Shrimp of the Prospect League. Alderman Buffo seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley 
called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo 
voting aye; motion carried. 

Alderman Buffo complimented dispatch, police and fire departments regarding their efforts on small 
dishwasher fire in his home. Alderman Buffo stated the response time and service was exceptional. 

Alderman Payton recommended that people use turn signals at the roundabout as a courtesy.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
stated he will look into additional signage. 

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS  

PUBLIC COMMENT  

CLOSED SESSION                                                   

ADJOURNMENT  

Alderman Ferrari made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Buffo seconded the motion 
and motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:54 P.M. 

 

 

 













































































































FUND FUND NAME  
10 General Fund 
15 Insurance Fund
60 Utility Fund 
80 Landfill Fund
85 Airport Fund 2,107.21                                                       

1,768,645.27$                                             

City of Peru Disbursements to be Paid 03/03/2021

TOTAL AMOUNT
1,052,930.72                                               

659,841.49                                                  
53,064.05                                                    

701.80                                                          



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-11-55500 IPASS REPLENISH 20.00                  EDUCATION/MEE
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-11-56100 815-228-8516 MAYOR 51.19                  TELEPHONE
CREATIVE APPAREL 10 -5-11-65200 APPAREL 43.01                  OPERATING SUP
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-11-92900 WIFI-MAYOR 38.03                  MISCELLANEOUS
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-12-45110 CLERK 1,432.85            GROUP INSURAN
NEOPOST 10 -5-12-56000 PSTG METER REFILL 500.00                POSTAGE
PETTY CASH 10 -5-12-56000 ADM PETTY CASH 7.65                    POSTAGE
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINAN 10 -5-12-59900 COPIER LEASE DUE 3/15 214.43                CONTRACTUAL S
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-12-92900 815-200-2945 PUB SVCS 51.35                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-12-92900 815-200-5094 PISCIA 72.87                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-12-92900 815-228-1449 BARTLEY 72.63                  MISCELLANEOUS
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-14-45110 ENGINEER 4,918.35            GROUP INSURAN
FULMER'S TOWING LLC 10 -5-14-51300 TOW SVC Z102 75.00                  R&M/VEHICLES
DUNCAN & BRANDT 10 -5-14-54950 ADJ HEARING-FEB21 166.67                ADM HEARING E
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-14-65200 WIFI-ENGINEER 76.02                  OPERATING SUP
KEENEY CONTRACTING 10 -5-14-92900 2703 LIBERTY LANE MAILBOX RPR 297.70                MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-14-92900 815-228-9981 ENGINEER 51.19                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-14-92900 815-830-1239 BLDG INSP 51.18                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-14-92900 815-993-1511 ZBOROWSKI 72.63                  MISCELLANEOUS
WEST BEND MUTUAL INSURA 10 -5-14-92900 NOTARY BOND/COUTRE 50.00                  MISCELLANEOUS
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-15-45110 RETIREES 5,670.70            GROUP INSURAN
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-15-45181 2/10 HRA-GF 537.67                KBA-HRA FUND
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-15-45181 2/17 HRA-GF 4,241.25            KBA-HRA FUND
IL PUBLIC RISK FUND 10 -5-15-45400 2020 WC AUDIT FEE 8.00                    WORKER'S COMP
IL PUBLIC RISK FUND 10 -5-15-45400 2020 WC AUDIT PREMIUM 266.00                WORKER'S COMP
CONNECTING POINT COMPUT 10 -5-15-51220 JOOMLA CONTR THRU 2/2022 2,268.00            R&M/WEBSITE
DUNCAN & BRANDT 10 -5-15-54950 ADJ HEARING-FEB21 166.66                ADM HEARING E
LASALLE PUBLISHING/LEGA 10 -5-15-56200 2021 EXT NOTICE 212.31                PUBLISHING/AD
LASALLE PUBLISHING/LEGA 10 -5-15-56200 PENSION NOTICE 62.85                  PUBLISHING/AD
LASALLE PUBLISHING/LEGA 10 -5-15-56200 PUB HEARING 2/24 302.40                PUBLISHING/AD
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-15-65200 THERMOMETER;VACUUM 34.99                  OPERATING SUP
HYVEE 10 -5-15-65200 WATER 172.16                OPERATING SUP
MCMASTER-CARR 10 -5-15-65200 SUPPLIES 20.42                  OPERATING SUP
QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-15-65200 SUPPLIES 131.93                OPERATING SUP
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-15-65200 WIFI-ADMIN 38.01                  OPERATING SUP
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-15-65400 THERMOMETER;VACUUM 119.95                COVID19 EXPEN
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-15-65400 ZOOM FOR MEETINGS 326.33                COVID19 EXPEN
OVAL WACKER CONSULTING 10 -5-15-91000 MAR21 CONSULTANT 2,666.40            ECONOMIC DEVE
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-15-92900 779-601-8091 ROUNDS 43.93                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-15-92900 815-200-5047 REESE 72.87                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-15-92900 815-200-5058 THORSON 72.87                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-15-92900 815-326-9307 FINANCE OFFICER 51.19                  MISCELLANEOUS
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-15-92900 815-681-8600 RECR DIR 51.19                  MISCELLANEOUS
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-16-45110 POLICE 44,377.92          GROUP INSURAN
PERU POLICE PENSION FUN 10 -5-16-46400 MAR21 CONTRIBUTION 83,333.33          PPNS CONTRB/P
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-16-47100 BENTLEY-CA 69.55                  CLOTHING ALLO
GALLS, AN ARAMARK CO. L 10 -5-16-47100 CONNESS CA 35.94                  CLOTHING ALLO
JCM UNIFORMS INC 10 -5-16-47100 LEARY VEST COVER 231.90                CLOTHING ALLO
JCM UNIFORMS INC 10 -5-16-47100 WRIGHT VEST COVER 231.90                CLOTHING ALLO
PETTY CASH 10 -5-16-47100 CA-BERNABEI SHIPPING 10.20                  CLOTHING ALLO
COMMUNICATION WORKS 10 -5-16-51200 FIBER OUTAGE-TECH HELP 450.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT
COMMUNICATION WORKS 10 -5-16-51200 FIBER OUTAGE-TECH HELP 300.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT
COMMUNICATION WORKS 10 -5-16-51200 REPAIR CABINET 140.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
SUNNY COMMUNICATIONS, I 10 -5-16-51200 RADIO REPAIR 287.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT
CORONET DODGE TOYOTA 10 -5-16-51300 PPD35 MAINT 52.80                  R&M/VEHICLES
CORONET DODGE TOYOTA 10 -5-16-51300 PPD36 MAINT 101.70                R&M/VEHICLES
POMP'S TIRE SERVICE 10 -5-16-51300 PPD38 TIRES 619.20                R&M/VEHICLES
RAY O'HERRON CO., INC 10 -5-16-51300 SECURE IDLE-NEW VEHICLE 269.59                R&M/VEHICLES
SCHIMMER INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPD33 MAINT 55.56                  R&M/VEHICLES
SCHIMMER INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPS32 MAINT 55.56                  R&M/VEHICLES
SCHOLLE BODY SHOP 10 -5-16-51300 SQUAD40 TOW 100.00                R&M/VEHICLES
CENTRAL IL RADIOLOGICAL 10 -5-16-53420 WRIGHT-MED SVCS 54.00                  MEDICAL SERVI
ST MARGARET'S HEALTH - 10 -5-16-53420 LEARY-MED SVCS 988.00                MEDICAL SERVI
DUNCAN & BRANDT 10 -5-16-54950 ADJ HEARING-FEB21 166.67                ADM HEARING E
CANDLEWOOD SUITES 10 -5-16-55500 LEARY 1/18-1/21 257.24                MEETINGS/EDUC
CANDLEWOOD SUITES 10 -5-16-55500 LEARY 1/24-1/28 321.55                MEETINGS/EDUC
CANDLEWOOD SUITES 10 -5-16-55500 LEARY 1/31-2/4 321.55                MEETINGS/EDUC
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-16-55500 CPR MANUALS 368.73                MEETINGS/EDUC
IL DEPT OF PUBLIC HEALT 10 -5-16-55500 EMS RENEW/PAUL 20.00                  MEETINGS/EDUC
PETTY CASH 10 -5-16-56000 POSTAGE 155.40                POSTAGE
CALL ONE 10 -5-16-56100 1128987-1503 4TH ST-POL (178.41)              TELEPHONE
DRESBACH DIST CO 10 -5-16-65200 ICE MELT 32.85                  OPERATING SUP
DRESBACH DIST CO 10 -5-16-65200 ICE MELT 47.80                  OPERATING SUP
IL SECRETARY OF STATE 10 -5-16-65200 CONF PLATE RENEWAL 151.00                OPERATING SUP
INTOXIMETERS, INC. 10 -5-16-65200 BREATHALYZER SUPPLIES 958.00                OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 10 -5-16-65200 ATKINS-AMMO 53.94                  OPERATING SUP
PETTY CASH 10 -5-16-65200 HOCKING-COOLER 17.32                  OPERATING SUP
PETTY CASH 10 -5-16-65200 SUPPLIES 6.55                    OPERATING SUP
QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-16-65200 SUPPLIES 113.99                OPERATING SUP
QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-16-65200 SUPPLIES 88.35                  OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 10 -5-16-65220 DOG FOOD 103.18                SPECIAL PROGR
TRANSUNION RISK AND ALT 10 -5-16-68400 TLO 75.00                  COMPUTER SOFT
LEOPARDO COMPANIES INC 10 -5-16-89500 POLICE STATION-PAY APP10 565,267.00        POLICE STATIO
PERU LL SOFTBALL INC 10 -5-16-91100 TEAM SPONSOR FEE 275.00                COMMUNITY REL
LETTERKRAFT PRINTERS 10 -5-16-92900 PD PATCH-ARTWORK 598.10                MISCELLANEOUS
MCS ADVERTISING 10 -5-16-92900 POLICE PHOTOGRAPHY 150.00                MISCELLANEOUS
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-17-45110 FIRE 9,401.23            GROUP INSURAN
PERU FIREFIGHTERS PENSI 10 -5-17-46400 MAR21 CONTRIBUTION 12,500.00          FIRE PENS/PPR
MES-ILLINOIS 10 -5-17-47100 KROLAK-CA 43.07                  CLOTHING ALLO
COMMUNICATIONS DIRECT I 10 -5-17-51200 SHIPPING 15.00                  R&M/EQUIPMENT
COMMUNICATIONS DIRECT I 10 -5-17-51200 SHIPPING 15.00                  R&M/EQUIPMENT
COMMUNICATIONS DIRECT I 10 -5-17-51200 SHIPPING 15.00                  R&M/EQUIPMENT
LEONE'S POLARIS 10 -5-17-51200 BATTERY FOR 4-WHEELER 142.95                R&M/EQUIPMENT
LEONE'S POLARIS 10 -5-17-51200 FUEL PUMP FOR 4 WHEELER 39.14                  R&M/EQUIPMENT
STARVED ROCK COMMUNICAT 10 -5-17-51200 DECODER MAINT 255.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-17-51300 301 OIL CHANGE 106.27                R&M/VEHICLES
FULMER'S TOWING LLC 10 -5-17-51300 TOW SVC #343 75.00                  R&M/VEHICLES
ST MARGARET'S HEALTH - 10 -5-17-53420 CURTIN-MED SVCS 144.00                MEDICAL SERVI
ST MARGARET'S HEALTH - 10 -5-17-53420 KROLAK-MED SVCS 208.00                MEDICAL SERVI
ST MARGARET'S HEALTH - 10 -5-17-53420 NADOLSKI-MED SVCS 168.00                MEDICAL SERVI
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-17-55500 STAPLES-SUPP INCIDENT COMM CLS 781.88                EDUCATION/MEE
CALL ONE 10 -5-17-56100 1128974-1503 4TH ST-FIRE 56.50                  TELEPHONE
CALL ONE 10 -5-17-56100 1128986-1503 4TH ST-FIRE (178.41)              TELEPHONE
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-17-56100 815-712-2165 FIRE DEPT1 51.18                  TELEPHONE
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-17-56100 815-712-2166 FIRE DEPT2 51.18                  TELEPHONE
CINTAS CORPORATION 10 -5-17-59900 FIRE-CAB SVC 30.27                  CONTRACTUAL S



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-17-65200 STAPLES-OFFICE SUPPLIES 52.98                  OPERATING SUP
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-17-65200 SUPPLIES-FIBERBOARD 13.52                  OPERATING SUP
MES-ILLINOIS 10 -5-17-65200 HOSE 72.74                  OPERATING SUP
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-19-45110 STREET 5,497.52            GROUP INSURAN
JOHN'S SERVICE & SALES 10 -5-19-51100 DISHWASHER REPAIR 492.21                R&M/BUILDINGS
A G INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 10 -5-19-51200 BURST DISC ASSBLY 200.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT
COMMUNICATION WORKS 10 -5-19-51200 RELO RADIO 225.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT
CYCLOPS WELDING & MFG 10 -5-19-51200 GATOR REPAIR 155.00                R&M/EQUIPMENT
KING TIRE 10 -5-19-51300 D315 TIRES 1,123.00            R&M/VEHICLES
MIDWEST WHEEL COMPANIES 10 -5-19-51300 BRAKE KIT 85.98                  R&M/VEHICLES
MIDWEST WHEEL COMPANIES 10 -5-19-51300 LAMP 84.00                  R&M/VEHICLES
CURRAN MATERIALS CO 10 -5-19-51400 BLACKTOP 244.80                R&M/STREETS
CURRAN MATERIALS CO 10 -5-19-51400 BLACKTOP 761.60                R&M/STREETS
MERTEL GRAVEL CO 10 -5-19-51400 6TH & GRANT 728.71                R&M/STREETS
MERTEL GRAVEL CO 10 -5-19-51400 WATER ST STOCKPILE 1,203.01            R&M/STREETS
IL VALLEY EXCAVATING IN 10 -5-19-51434 N PEORIA ROCK 7,500.00            STREET MAINT
IL VALLEY EXCAVATING IN 10 -5-19-51434 PLANK RD-SHLDR ROCK 9,199.94            STREET MAINT
IMUA-IL MUNICIPAL UTILI 10 -5-19-55510 JAN 21 SAFETY TRNG 262.50                SAFETY TRAINI
CALL ONE 10 -5-19-56100 1128977-1012 PEORIA ST 53.13                  TELEPHONE
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-19-56100 815-200-2897 PUB SVCS 51.19                  TELEPHONE
CINTAS CORPORATION 10 -5-19-59900 PW CAB SVC 569.99                CONTRACTUAL S
COMCAST BUSINESS CABLE/ 10 -5-19-59900 PW INTERNET TO 3/16 363.60                CONTRACTUAL S
MICHAEL TODD & CO INC 10 -5-19-61200 ANCHOR-POST 1,368.25            SIGNS
MICHAEL TODD & CO INC 10 -5-19-61200 LEFT CURVE SIGN 72.81                  SIGNS
MICHAEL TODD & CO INC 10 -5-19-61200 SIGNS 281.28                SIGNS
CARGILL INC 10 -5-19-61300 DEICER SALT 16,844.57          SALT
CARGILL INC 10 -5-19-61300 DEICER SALT 7,058.10            SALT
CARGILL INC 10 -5-19-61300 DEICER SALT 15,762.51          SALT
CARGILL INC 10 -5-19-61300 DEICER SALT 1,686.08            SALT
DRESBACH DIST CO 10 -5-19-65200 ICE MELT 59.75                  OPERATING SUP
HYVEE 10 -5-19-65200 WATER 13.86                  OPERATING SUP
IL SECRETARY OF STATE 10 -5-19-65200 MUNC PLATES D315 8.00                    OPERATING SUP
IL SECRETARY OF STATE 10 -5-19-65200 TITLE D315 150.00                OPERATING SUP
MENARDS 10 -5-19-65200 SUPPLIES 47.06                  OPERATING SUP
QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-19-65200 SUPPLIES 12.78                  OPERATING SUP
UNIVERSAL CHEMICAL 10 -5-19-65200 GLOVES 70.80                  OPERATING SUP
ARNESON OIL COMPANY 10 -5-19-65500 DIESEL FUEL 872.96                FUEL & OIL VE
ARNESON OIL COMPANY 10 -5-19-65500 DIESEL FUEL 986.49                FUEL & OIL VE
HYVEE 10 -5-19-65500 FUEL 502.92                FUEL & OIL VE
DEERE CREDIT INC 10 -5-19-72370 LEASE/PURCH 3/20 208.01                INT-JOHN DEER
DEERE CREDIT INC 10 -5-19-88400 LEASE/PURCH 3/20 3,655.92            NEW EQUIPMENT
VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-19-92900 815-228-1827 GARAGE 46.12                  MISCELLANEOUS
WEST BEND MUTUAL INSURA 10 -5-19-92900 NOTARY BOND/CARRUTHERS 50.00                  MISCELLANEOUS
JAY GINGERICH 10 -5-21-51450 SIDEWALK REIMBURSEMENT 330.00                R&M/SIDEWALKS
DJ'S CARPET OUTLET 10 -5-22-51100 CARPET TILES 1,415.50            R&M/BUILDINGS
CALL ONE 10 -5-22-56100 1128988-1901 4TH ST-ADM 109.54                TELEPHONE
CALL ONE 10 -5-22-56100 1128989-1901 4TH ST-CLERK 352.76                TELEPHONE
CINTAS CORP #396 10 -5-22-59900 CITY HALL-MAT SVC 31.44                  CONTRACTUAL S
CINTAS CORP #396 10 -5-22-59900 CITY HALL-MAT SVC 25.59                  CONTRACTUAL S
CONNIE BERG 10 -5-22-59900 CLEAN 2/13; 2/20 300.00                CONTRACTUAL S
JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURI 10 -5-22-59900 CITY HALL-QTRLY ALARM 306.10                CONTRACTUAL S
MENARDS 10 -5-22-65200 ICE MELT 179.73                OPERATING SUP
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-23-45110 PARKS 3,984.19            GROUP INSURAN



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-23-51300 CAR WASH 19.00                  R&M/VEHICLES
CREATIVE APPAREL 10 -5-23-65200 APPAREL 260.78                OPERATING SUP
MCS ADVERTISING 10 -5-23-65210 SCHWEICKERT CK DISPLAY 65.00                  EVENTS/PROGRA
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-24-45110 CEMETERY 2,375.64            GROUP INSURAN
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 10 -5-24-47100 URBANC-CA 49.99                  CLOTHING ALLO
CALL ONE 10 -5-24-56100 1128981-2121 SHOOTING PARK RD 64.17                  TELEPHONE
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-25-45110 GARAGE 3,041.40            GROUP INSURAN
INSURANCE FUND 10 -5-26-45110 FINANCE 1,695.14            GROUP INSURAN
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-26-65200 LASER LINK 2020 1099 120.94                OPERATING SUP
CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10 -5-26-65200 ROUNDS-IT SOFTWARE 48.83                  OPERATING SUP
HYGIENIC INSTITUTE OF L 10 -5-29-52801 MAR21 CONTRIBUTION 959.00                HYGIENIC INST
PERU VOLUNTEER AMBULANC 10 -5-29-52802 FEB21 SVCS 6,149.38            AMBULANCE CON
KEY BENEFITS ADMINISTRA 15 -5-15-45100 2/10 MEDICAL REQ 204.84                HEALTH CLAIMS
KEY BENEFITS ADMINISTRA 15 -5-15-45100 2/17 MEDICAL REQ 6,808.76            HEALTH CLAIMS
KEY BENEFITS ADMINISTRA 15 -5-15-45150 2/10 HRA REQ 834.62                HRA CLAIMS
KEY BENEFITS ADMINISTRA 15 -5-15-45150 2/17 HRA REQ 4,572.90            HRA CLAIMS
KEY BENEFITS ADMINISTRA 15 -5-15-53550 MAR 2021 ADMIN COSTS 40,642.93          ADMIN FEES
IL DEPT OF REVENUE 60 -20600 JAN21 UTILITY EXCISE TAX 64,199.38          UTILITY TAX P
INSURANCE FUND 60 -5-12-45110 WS/LT CLERK 1,608.55            GROUP INSURAN
CREATIVE SERVICES 60 -5-12-56000 JAN21 UTILITY BILLS 2,214.73            POSTAGE
CREATIVE SERVICES 60 -5-12-59900 JAN21 UTILITY BILLS 553.75                CONTRACTUAL S
INSURANCE FUND 60 -5-15-45110 LT UTIL-ADMIN 16,109.94          GROUP INSURAN
INSURANCE FUND 60 -5-15-45110 WS ADMIN 11,111.11          GROUP INSURAN
INSURANCE FUND 60 -5-15-45181 2/10 HRA-UTIL 296.95                KBA-HRA FUND
INSURANCE FUND 60 -5-15-45181 2/17 HRA-UTIL 331.65                KBA-HRA FUND
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSL 60 -5-15-47100 NAMBO-CA 106.19                CLOTHING ALLO
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 ELEC UNIF/MATS 436.07                UNIFORM SERVI
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 ELEC UNIF/MATS 436.07                UNIFORM SERVI
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 PW UNIF/MATS 435.51                UNIFORM SERVI
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 PW UNIF/MATS 435.51                UNIFORM SERVI
VINING SPARKS 60 -5-15-53500 JAN2020 INVEST FEES 108.00                BANK FEES/SER
IMUA-IL MUNICIPAL UTILI 60 -5-15-55510 JA 21 SAFETY TRNG 262.50                SAFETY TRAINI
NATIONAL RR SAFETY SERV 60 -5-15-55510 CONTRACTOR ORIENTN TRNG 245.00                SAFETY TRAINI
CALL ONE 60 -5-15-56100 1128979 4005 PLANK RD 240.43                TELEPHONE
VERIZON WIRELESS 60 -5-15-56100 ELEC WIRELESS TO 2/15 434.23                TELEPHONE
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 ELEC UNIF/MATS 138.98                CONTRACTUAL S
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 ELEC UNIF/MATS 145.28                CONTRACTUAL S
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 PW UNIF/MATS 199.03                CONTRACTUAL S
CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 PW UNIF/MATS 273.61                CONTRACTUAL S
CINTAS CORPORATION 60 -5-15-59900 ELEC CAB SVC 116.91                CONTRACTUAL S
MIDWEST RENEWABLE ENERG 60 -5-15-59900 ISSUANCE 64.34                  CONTRACTUAL S
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 60 -5-15-65200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 37.48                  OPERATING SUP
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 60 -5-15-65200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 171.71                OPERATING SUP
QUILL CORPORATION 60 -5-15-65200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 110.98                OPERATING SUP
QUILL CORPORATION 60 -5-15-65200 SUPPLIES 16.20                  OPERATING SUP
QUILL CORPORATION 60 -5-15-65200 SUPPLIES 77.72                  OPERATING SUP
GENERAL FUND 60 -5-15-99200 MAR21 FRANCHISE 139,568.42        FRANCHISE FEE
FICEK ELECTRIC & COMMUN 60 -5-61-51100 FIRE ALARM MNTNCE 508.97                R&M/BUILDINGS
MENARDS 60 -5-61-51100 FLUORESCENT LIGHTS 50.02                  R&M/BUILDINGS
MENARDS 60 -5-61-51100 SUPPLIES 16.98                  R&M/BUILDINGS
COMMUNICATION WORKS 60 -5-61-51200 RADIO VOTER RCVR 3,425.00            R&M/EQUIPMENT
HYVEE 60 -5-61-65200 WATER 256.16                OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-61-65200 LYNCH-HEATER 89.99                  OPERATING SUP



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-61-65200 SALT 48.51                  OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-61-65200 SNOWBROOM;SCRAPER 11.86                  OPERATING SUP
ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-51200 GLOVE TEST 21.06                  R&M/EQUIPMENT
SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 DISTR SUPPLIES 56.90                  R&M/DIST EQUI
AIRGAS USA, LLC-NORTH D 60 -5-62-65200 PROPANE 52.39                  OPERATING SUP
AIRGAS USA, LLC-NORTH D 60 -5-62-65200 PROPANE 52.39                  OPERATING SUP
MAZE LUMBER COMPANY 60 -5-62-65200 LUMBER 49.59                  OPERATING SUP
NATIONAL INDUSTR & SFTY 60 -5-62-65200 HVT DUTY WIPES/HAND CLNR 459.80                OPERATING SUP
AIRGAS USA, LLC-NORTH D 60 -5-62-65300 TORCH 311.37                SMALL TOOLS
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-62-65300 MANHOLE HOOK 64.78                  SMALL TOOLS
SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-63-51200 12 CONTROL EYES 211.56                R&M/EQUIPMENT
SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-63-51200 ORNAMENTAL LIGHTING HEADS 3,412.91            R&M/EQUIPMENT
REVERE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 60 -5-64-51200 HYDRO-VALVE 742.60                R&M/EQUIPMENT
CALL ONE 60 -5-64-56100 1128971 952 N 27TH 148.44                TELEPHONE
CHAPMAN'S MECHANICAL 60 -5-72-51200 TRANSFORMER 130.00                R&M EQUIPMENT
TEST INC. 60 -5-72-52804 WATER & WWTP CONTRACT 23,331.63          WS/WWTP SERVI
TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 CF PT ANALYSIS 400.25                ANALYSIS PRET
TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 DIAMOND TRK PT ANALYSIS 555.75                ANALYSIS PRET
TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 MAZE NAILS PT ANALYSIS 335.00                ANALYSIS PRET
TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 NANCHEM PT ANALYSIS 580.75                ANALYSIS PRET
TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 PRETIUM PT ANALYSIS 487.25                ANALYSIS PRET
TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 UNYTITE PT ANALYSIS 471.25                ANALYSIS PRET
CALL ONE 60 -5-72-56100 1128970 2901 PEORIA ST 107.30                TELEPHONE
MIDWEST SALT 60 -5-72-61300 SALT 2,732.92            SALT
MIDWEST SALT 60 -5-72-61300 SALT 2,690.86            SALT
MIDWEST SALT 60 -5-72-61300 SALT 2,796.55            SALT
VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY 60 -5-72-61800 CHLORINE 1,008.43            CHLORINE
COLUMBIA PIPE & SUPPLY 60 -5-72-65200 SUPPLIES 281.74                OPERATING SUP
CORE&MAIN 60 -5-73-51520 CLAMPS 2,345.00            R&M/WATER MAI
FERGUSON WATERWORKS 60 -5-73-51520 CLAMPS 816.70                R&M/WATER MAI
FERGUSON WATERWORKS 60 -5-73-51520 SUPPLIES 2,664.02            R&M/WATER MAI
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-73-52000 SUPPLIES 2,403.82            R&M SEWERS
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-73-52000 SUPPLIES 720.64                R&M SEWERS
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-73-52000 SUPPLIES 167.40                R&M SEWERS
IL VALLEY EXCAVATING IN 60 -5-73-52100 4TH & ROCK DITCH 7,911.50            R&M STORM SEW
PABIAN ENTERPRISES LLC 60 -5-73-52940 PLANK LIFT STN REPAIR 425.00                R&M LIFT STAT
MIDWEST METER INC 60 -5-73-52960 METER BASE 1,729.75            R&M METERS
MIDWEST METER INC 60 -5-73-52960 METER TEST 35.85                  R&M METERS
CALL ONE 60 -5-73-56100 1128982 1352 E ROCK ST 312.27                TELEPHONE
CALL ONE 60 -5-73-56100 1128984 700 30TH ST 54.73                  TELEPHONE
VERIZON WIRELESS 60 -5-73-56100 FLOWMETER TO 2/15 7.02                    TELEPHONE
CORE&MAIN 60 -5-73-65200 RET DIST SUPPLIES (218.53)              OPERATING SUP
FERGUSON WATERWORKS 60 -5-73-65200 FLAG MARKERS 470.47                OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-73-65200 MAIER-GLOVES 59.99                  OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-73-65200 MAIER-SUPPLIES;GLOVES;GAITER 25.47                  OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-73-65200 NAMBO-GLOVES 84.96                  OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-73-65200 NEWTON-SUPPLIES 7.46                    OPERATING SUP
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-73-65200 SITTLER-MUCK BOOTS 99.99                  OPERATING SUP
CENTRAL MILLWRIGHT SERV 60 -5-74-51100 WASTEWATER TANK 4,478.11            R&M BUILDINGS
MACHINERY MAINTENANCE I 60 -5-74-51100 STEEL EXT TUBES 892.31                R&M BUILDINGS
REPUBLIC SERVICES 60 -5-74-65010 JAN21 SLUDGE DISP 6,166.03            SLUDGE REMOVA
MAZE LUMBER COMPANY 60 -5-74-65200 SUPPLIES 149.09                OPERATING SUP
MAZE LUMBER COMPANY 60 -5-74-65200 SUPPLIES 245.76                OPERATING SUP



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
MENARDS 60 -5-74-65200 SUPPLIES 104.26                OPERATING SUP
MENARDS 60 -5-74-65200 SUPPLIES 131.79                OPERATING SUP
BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E201 MNTNCE 1,054.77            R&M/VEHICLES
BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E202 MNTNCE 4,639.24            R&M/VEHICLES
BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E203 BELTS 1,178.45            R&M/VEHICLES
BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E302 SHOCKS 3,661.40            R&M/VEHICLES
FLEET SAFETY SUPPLY 60 -5-75-51300 E203 AMBER LTS 320.69                R&M/VEHICLES
SCHOLLE BODY SHOP 60 -5-75-51300 E203 TOW SVC 225.00                R&M/VEHICLES
COMMUNICATIONS DIRECT I 60 -5-75-51800 E203 RADIO REPAIR 156.35                R&M/RADIOS
JOHN POHAR & SONS, INC 60 -5-77-88405 THE POINT UTILITIES-APP2 100,000.00        NEW WATER MAI
IL VALLEY EXCAVATING IN 60 -5-77-88500 TV SEWER LINES 17,545.00          SEWER SEPARAT
JAY STACHOWIAK/TINA WRI 60 -5-77-88500 SEWER SEP-SHED RPLCMNT 1,090.50            SEWER SEPARAT
REPUBLIC SERVICES 80 -5-90-59900 TEMP YARD WASTE 701.80                CONTRACTUAL S
MEBULBS 85 -5-90-52660 LIGHTS 540.58                R&M/RUNWAY LI
CHAMLIN & ASSOCIATES IN 85 -5-90-53100 AIRPORT TIPS 816.00                ENGINEERING E
CALL ONE 85 -5-90-56100 1128973-4251 ED URBAN DR 275.63                TELEPHONE
IL OIL MARKETING EQUIP 85 -5-90-59900 ANN COMPLIANCE 475.00                CONTRACTUAL S

1,355,861.37     



GENERAL FUND
10 ELECTED OFFICIALS 7,617.93
12 CLERK'S OFFICE 2,212.17
14 ENGINEER 14,225.09
15 ADMINISTRATIVE 1,089.44
16 POLICE 82,223.60
17 FIRE 18,729.99
19 STREET 33,227.80
22 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 0.00
23 PARKS 13,597.53
24 CEMETERY 3,923.51
25 CITY GARAGE 7,177.93
26 FINANCE 17,466.87

10 TOTAL GENERAL FUND 201,491.86

UTILITY FUND
12 CLERK'S OFFICE 6,162.50
15 ADMINISTRATIVE 1,714.46
61 POWER & GENERATION 9,517.93
62 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 32,352.33
64 HYDROELECTRIC PLANT 6,039.91
72 WATER TREATMENT 0.00
73 WATER DISTRIBUTION 21,490.28

60 TOTAL UTILITY FUND 77,277.41

TOTAL 278,769.27$  

City of Peru Payroll Totals 



60 UTILITY FUND
HEARTLAND BNK INT/RSRV TRANSF AREA 4&6 LOAN 19,194.00                          
THE BANK OF NEW YORK TRANSF 2010 GO BONDS 18,791.46                          
HEARTLAND BNK INT/RSRV TRANSF 2017 GO BONDS 96,029.17                          

134,014.63$                     

TOTAL 134,014.63$                     

CITY OF PERU
DISBURSEMENTS FOR PAYMENT MARCH 3, 2021

PAYMENTS BY WIRE























1 

 

ORDINANCE NO_______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIANCES AS SOUGHT BY 

THE PETITION OF DOUGLAS AND JENNIFER CASS 

CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 930 34TH STREET 

IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 

 

 

WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner 

provided by law, the Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru conducted a public hearing 

on February 24, 2021, to consider the Petition of Douglas and Jennifer Cass (hereinafter 

“Petitioners”) concerning property located at 930 34th Street in the City of Peru, Illinois, legally 

described as follows: 

Lot Twelve (12) in Schmidt’s Northtown Subdivision to the City of Peru, according 

to the plat thereof, recorded September 15, 2005, as Document No. R2005-24567, 

excepting therefrom coal and minerals and the right to mine and remove the same, 

all situated in the County of LaSalle and State of Illinois.  

 

PIN: 17-09-141-007 (hereinafter “Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Petitioners desire to construct a 16’ x 37’ swimming pool, 25’ x 35’ pool 

house, and fence on the Property and request the following relief, to wit: 

(a) a variance to reduce the rear yard setback from not less than 40’, as provided in 

Section 10.03(h)(1)a, to not less than 15’; 

 

(b) a variance to reduce the side yard setback from not less than 10’, as provided in 

Section 10.03(h)(1)a, to not less than 2’; 

 

(c) to allow the construction of a 5’ sidewalk upon a portion of the City’s easement; 

 

(d) a variance from Section 6.01(a)(1) to increase the maximum area of an accessory 

structure from not more than 150 sq. ft. to not more than 875 sq. ft.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

unanimously recommended that the City Council approve the variance sought by Petitioners. 



2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The City Council finds as facts the recitals hereinbefore set forth. 

SECTION 2: The Property is hereby granted the following variances: 

(a) a variance to reduce the rear yard setback from not less than 40’, as provided in 

Section 10.03(h)(1)a, to not less than 15’; 

 

(b) a variance to reduce the side yard setback from not less than 10’, as provided in 

Section 10.03(h)(1)a, to not less than 2’; 

 

(c) to allow the construction of a 5’ sidewalk upon a portion of the City’s easement; 

and 

 

(d) a variance from Section 6.01(a)(1) to increase the maximum area of an accessory 

structure from not more than 150 sq. ft. to not more than 875 sq. ft. 

 

City’s approval of Petitioners’ request to allow for the construction of a sidewalk 

encroaching 5’ on City’s easement is made with the condition and agreement of Petitioners that 

Petitioners shall be solely responsible for repairing any all damage to the sidewalk resulting from 

City’s use, maintenance or repair of its utilities located within the City’s easement. 

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to preempt any private covenants and 

restrictions that may be applicable to the Property. 

SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval according to law.  

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with _____ voting aye, ______ voting 

nay, _______ absent, and Mayor Harl _____ voting ______, which meeting was held on the 1st 

day of March, 2021.   



3 
 

APPROVED: March 1, 2021 

 

 

_________________________________ 

        Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David R. Bartley, City Clerk 

 

 

Aldermen       Aye             Nay Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton  

Ballard 

Buffo 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

February 25, 2021 

Mayor Scott J. Harl,  

Peru City Clerk, and 

Aldermen of the City of Peru 

 

RE: Petition of GC Housing Development LLC and Crane Construction Company LLC 

 1810 4th Street and 710 Peoria Street, Peru, IL 

Gentlemen: 

 

Pursuant to legal notice published in the News Tribune in the manner provided by law, the 

Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru convened for a public hearing on Wednesday, 

February 24, 2021, at 5:15 p.m. in the City Municipal Building, 1901 Fourth Street, Peru, IL, to 

consider the Petition of  GC Housing Development LLC and Crane Construction Company LLC 

(hereinafter “Petitioners”) concerning property generally located at 1810 4th Street and 710 Peoria Street, 

Peru, IL (hereinafter “Premises”).  

 

Planning/Zoning Commission Members Miller, Atkinson, Lucas, Grabowski, and Brady were 

present at the hearing. Members Kalsto and Moreno were absent. Due to COVID-19, this meeting was 

also streamed live on the internet.  

 

City Corporate Counsel Schweickert stated that Petitioners had appeared before the 

Planning/Zoning Commission in 2020 and on March 16, 2020, the City approved Petitioners request 

for waivers, variances, rezoning, and approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Premises 

contingent upon Petitioners receipt of tax credits from the Illinois Housing Development Authority 

and approval of a Final Development Plan. 

 

Attorney Schweickert noted that Petitioners were not approved for IHDA tax credits last year 

and plan to reapply this year for the same project. Pursuant to Section 14.04(a)(2) of the City’s Zoning 

Ordinance, Petitioners request a six (6) month time extension to submit the Final Development Plan 

for approval. 

 

There were no objectors online or in-person at the hearing.  

 

Chairman Miller moved, and Member Atkinson seconded, that Petitioners be granted a six-

month extension for submitting a Final Development Plan for approval pursuant to Section 14.04(a)(2) 

of the City’s Zoning Ordinance. The motion passed unanimously: 5 aye, 0 nay, and 2 Members absent.     

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

_______________________________ 

CARY MILLER, Chairman of the 

Planning/Zoning Commission  



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO_______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SIX-MONTH EXTENSION FOR 

SUBMISSION OF FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AS SOUGHT BY THE 

PETITION OF GC HOUSING DEVELOPMENT LLC AND CRANE 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LLC 

 

 

WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner 

provided by law, the Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru conducted a public hearing 

on February 24, 2021, to consider the Petition of GC Housing Development LLC and Crane 

Construction Company LLC’s (“Petitioners”) concerning real estate generally located at 1810 4th 

Street and 710 Peoria Street (PINs: 17-17-436-017, 17-17-436-009 & 17-17-436-010) in the City 

of Peru, Illinois (“Premises”); and 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the City approved Petitioners request for waivers, 

variances, rezoning, and approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Premises contingent 

upon Petitioners receipt of tax credits from the Illinois Housing Development Authority and 

approval of a Final Development Plan; and 

WHEREAS, Petitioners did not receive the tax credits from the Illinois Housing 

Development Authority in 2020 and desire to reapply in 2021, and seek a six-month time extension 

to submit the Final Development Plan for approval pursuant to Section 14.04(a)(2) of the City’s 

Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

unanimously recommended that the City Council approve the six-month extension as sought by 

Petitioners. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 



2 
 

SECTION 1:  The City Council finds as facts the recitals hereinbefore set forth. 

SECTION 2:  Pursuant to Section 14.04(a)(2) of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Petitioners 

are hereby granted a six-month extension to submit a Final Development Plan for approval by 

September 16, 2021. 

SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval according to law.  

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with _____ voting aye, ______ voting 

nay, _______ absent, and Mayor Harl _____ voting ______, which meeting was held on the 1st 

day of March, 2021.   

APPROVED: March 1, 2021 

 

_________________________________ 

               Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

David R. Bartley, City Clerk 

 

 

Aldermen       Aye             Nay Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton  

Ballard 

Buffo 
 


























































	Agenda 030121
	MONDAY, MARCH 1, 2021
	MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS
	COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN
	PROCLAMATIONS
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT


	Regular Meeting Minutes 021521
	City Clerk's Report-Jan 2021
	General & Misc Funds-Dec 2020
	Utility Fund Financials-Dec 2020
	Disbursements for 03-03-21
	Total
	Listing
	Payroll
	Wires

	PZ Minutes Cass
	Ordinance Cass
	PZ Minutes GC Housing
	Ordinance Granting Extension to GC Housing
	Resolution Surf Broadband Solutions
	Ordinance Pistol Shrimp Baseball Club LLC

